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Newman United Methodist Church, located at 128 NE "B" Street, Grants Pass, Oregon,
is an excellent example of High Victorian Gothic wood construction. The main sanctuary
was built from lithographic plans made available through the Methodist Church General
Conference for the "small sum of five dollars each." The plans and printed specifications
along with a Tist of material quantities, provided for a building ranging in cost from
$2,200 to $8,000, depending on which optionswere taken.

The original building (1889) consisted of the sanctuary and three small Sunday School
classrooms. Single-story parlor and kitchen additions were constructed on the west and
south ends in 1905. The wood frame church has a modified cruciform plan, a shingled
gable roof and a square bell tower with an octagonal spire surmounted by a cross. The
original bell still rings on Sunday. Outer walls are pierced by hooded lancets, and there
is a rose window in each of the four gable ends. The interior of the sanctuary still has
the original wood flooring, sugar pine wainscoting and system of wooden arches supported
by hammer beams with pierced decoration. Rosettes and turned moidings and railing posts
are larch. The interior walls and ceiling are wood lath and plaster.

The chancel end is separated from the sanctuary seating by a semi-circular altar
rail with a pulpit to one side and a center altar at the rear wall directly under the
organ screen. There are choir pews on either side of the chancel. The sanctuary pews
are also sugar pine. They are arranged on either side of a center aisle, and the forward
pews are angled to create a kind of semi-circular configuration.

The interior is in good condition and has been little altered. Carpet was added to
the aisles around the altar rail and in the chancel. Some structural cross-cable was
added to prevent the four corners of the main sanctuary from further movement. Epworth
Hall was added to the east end between 1919 and 1923.

The Tatterstructure, with its scissors-truss roof system, false frontal gable and
lancet windows, served as a gymnasium and auditorium for church young people and the
community. It does not meet the Fire Safety Code at present. A modern masonry Educa-
tional Building, erected by the church on the extreme east end of the property in 1952,
is not included in the nomination.

The original wooden steps and balustrade of the church's main entry are no longer
extant. A perimeter fence intended to keep cows off the lawn was removed many years ago.

The church plans the following rehabilitation work:

. Refinish the interior woodwork, patch and paint interior walls
. Repair stained glass windows

. Rewire the interior to bring it up to code

. Provide a new heating system

Install fire suppression system ,

. Repair brick foundation to prevent future deterioration

. Install new roof

. Install new gutters and downspouts

Repaint exterior and repair siding as needed
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Newman Methodist Church accommodated the pioneers of the area during the early growth
of Southern Oregon. It had its beginnings in 1857, before Oregon became a state. Local
preacher Thomas Croxton owned much of the land on which Grants Pass is situated. Croxton,
his wife Hannah, and their daughter Margaret Croxton Tuffs, wife of James P. Tuffs, and a
few others are credited with organizing the Methodist Church before the town was named.
Croxton was a circuit rider in the Kerbyville mission circuit, which included Kerbyviile,
Althouse School, Jerome Prairie and Williamsburg.

The church was built in 1889 to replace a predecessor of 1886, which had soon been
outgrown. The Reverend T.L. Jones, former Kerbyville circuit riding preacher, was called
to direct construction of the existing church. The new church was dedicated on Sunday,
August 21, 1890, by Bishop J.P. Newman, who presided at the Oregon Annual Conference held
in Grants Pass that year. The design is believed to have been based upon Plan No. 6 which
appeared in Methodist Episcopal Church Board of Church Extension Annual Reports 1876-1879.
Among modifications made was the construction of a taller spire. Contractors were Hubbard
and Newell. The interior woodwork with its Gothic motifs was designed by H.C. Kinney, who
worked for the Sugar Pine Door and Lumber Company of Merlin, Oregon.

Newman United Methodist Church has been a religious and cultural center of the
community for nearly ninety years. Its significance lies in the fact that it is an intact
example of Carpenter Gothic architecture and is among the notable examples of its type in
Oregon. Moreover, it is an important visual landmark defining the space fronting the
Josephine County Courthouse (1916), which occupies an elevated site across Sixth Street
to the west.
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